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NOTE: The CSBA comprehensive index/table of contents is widely used by districts throughout the state. It
provides a standard index system designed to accommodate future policies/regulations and at the same time provides
a table of contents for this manual. This manual contains only those Board policies (BP), administrative regulations
(AR) and exhibits (E) specified in the right-hand column.
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
ALL PERSONNEL

BOARD POLICY 4000: CONCEPTS AND ROLES

The Governing Board recognizes that the success of district students and programs hinges
on effective personnel. The Board desires to establish safe and supportive working
conditions that will attract and retain staff members who are highly qualified and
dedicated to the education and welfare of students. The district's personnel policies and
related regulations shall be designed to ensure a supportive, positive climate and shall be
consistent with collective bargaining agreements and in conformance with state and

federal law and regulations.

As the legal representative of the district in negotiations with employee representatives,
the Board shall set goals and guidelines for collective bargaining, select the bargaining
team, maintain communications during the bargaining process, and adopt the negotiated
contract. Terms and conditions of employment, which have been negotiated and stated in
employee contracts, shall have the force of policy. The Board shall hear employee
complaints and appeals when such hearings are in accordance with Board policy or
negotiated agreements. The Board shall also adopt wage and salary schedules and shall
commit budget funds for staff development so that staff members may continue
developing their skills.

The Superintendent has primary responsibility for overseeing the district's personnel
system. To support this effort, the Board shall approve a framework for sound hiring
practices. The Superintendent shall nominate all personnel for employment, and the
Board shall approve only those persons so recommended. Individuals who approach
Board members regarding prospective employment shall be referred to the
Superintendent or designee.

The Superintendent or designee shall assign and supervise the work of all employees and
shall evaluate their work in accordance with effective accountability systems approved by
the Board. The Superintendent or designee also shall recommend disciplinary action,
which the Board may take against employees when warranted pursuant to Board policy,
administrative regulations and/or state or federal law.

The Board recognizes that every employee has a stake in the district's successful
operation. The Board encourages all district employees to express their ideas, concerns
and proposals related to the improvement of working conditions and the total educational
program. The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures whereby he/she will
receive and consider employee suggestions and submit them, when appropriate, for
consideration by the Board.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE GOVERNMENT CODE
35020 Duties of employees fixed by governing board 3540-3549.3 Public education
35035 Powers and duties of superintendent employer-employee relations

35160 Powers of governing board

Board Policy 4000: Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
ALL PERSONNEL

BOARD POLICY 4020:
DRUG AND ALCOHOL-FREE WORKPIACE

The Governing Board believes that the maintenance of drug- and alcohol-free workplaces
is essential to school and district operations.

No employee shall unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess, use or be under
the influence of any alcoholic beverage, drug or controlled substance as defined in 21
USC 81 at any school district workplace. These prohibitions apply before, during and
after school hours. A school district workplace is any place where school district work is
performed, any school-owned or school-approved vehicle used to transport students to
and from school or school activities; any off-school sites when accommodating a school-
sponsored or school-approved activity or function where students are under district
jurisdiction; or during any period of time when an employee is supervising students on
behalf of the district or otherwise engaged in district business.

The Superintendent or designee shall notify employees of these prohibitions.
(Government Code 8355; 41 USC 702)

An employee shall abide by the terms of this policy and notify the district, within five
days, of any criminal drug or alcohol statute conviction which he/she receives for a
violation occurring in the workplace. (41 USC 702)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify the appropriate federal granting or
contracting agencies within 10 days after receiving notification, from an employee or
otherwise, of any conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace. (41 USC 701)

The Board may not employ or retain in employment persons convicted of a controlled
substance offense as defined in Education Code 44011. If any such conviction is
reversed and the person acquitted in a new trial or the charges dismissed, his/her
employment is no longer prohibited. A plea or verdict of guilty, a finding of guilt by a
court in a trial without a jury, or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere shall be
deemed to be a conviction. (Education Code 44836, 45123)

A classified employee may be reemployed after conviction of such an offense if the
Board determines, from the evidence presented, that the person has been rehabilitated for
at least five years. (Education Code 45123)

Board Policy 4020(was B.P. 4004 Approved by the Board of Trustees Jan. 10, 1996): Approved
by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006



Board Policy 4020

The Board may take appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination, or
require the employee to satisfactorily participate in and complete a drug assistance or
rehabilitation program approved by a federal, state or local health, law enforcement or
other appropriate agency.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a drug- and alcohol-free awareness
program to inform employees about: (Government Code 8355)

1. The dangers of drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace

2. The district policy of maintaining drug- and alcohol-free workplaces

3. Any available drug and alcohol counseling, rehabilitation, and employee
assistance programs

4. The penalties that may be imposed on employees for drug and alcohol abuse
violations.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

44011 Controlled substance offense

44425 Conviction of controlled substance offenses as grounds for revocation of credential
44836 Employment of certificated persons convicted of controlled substance offenses
44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

44940.5 Procedures when employees are placed on compulsory leave of absence
45123 Employment after conviction of controlled substance offense

45304 Compulsory leave of absence for classified persons

GOVERNMENT CODE

8350-8357 Drug-free workplace

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

7111-7117 Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities Act

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 21

812 Schedule of controlled substances

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 21

1308.01-1308.49 Schedule of controlled substances

Board Policy 4020(was B.P. 4004 Approved by the Board of Trustees Jan. 10, 1996). Approved
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Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 4030

DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
ALL PERSONNEL

BOARD POLICY 4030: NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT

The Governing Board prohibits unlawful discrimination against and/or harassment of
district employees and job applicants on the basis of actual or perceived race, color,
national origin, ancestry, religion, age, marital status, pregnancy, physical or mental
disability, medical condition, veteran status, gender, sex or sexual orientation at any
district site and/or activity. The Board also prohibits retaliation against any district
employee or job applicant who complains, testifies or in any way participates in the
district's complaint procedures instituted pursuant to this policy.

Any district employee who engages or participates in unlawful discrimination, or who
aids, abets, incites, compels or coerces another to discriminate, is in violation of this
policy and is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

Any district employee who observes or has knowledge of an incident of unlawful
discrimination or harassment shall report the incident to the principal, district
administrator or Superintendent as soon as practical after the incident. Failure of a
district employee to report discrimination or harassment may result in disciplinary action.

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly publicize, within the district and in the
community, the district's nondiscrimination policy and the availability of complaint
procedures. Such publication shall be included in each announcement, bulletin or
application form that is used in employee recruitment. (34 CFR 100.6, 106.9)

The district's policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all schools and
offices including staff lounges. (5 CCR 4960)

The Board designates the following position as Coordinator for Nondiscrimination in
Employment:

Director of Human Resources
225 Ninth Street

Del Mar, CA 92014
858-523-6186

Other Remedies

An employee may, in addition to filing a discrimination complaint with the district, file a
complaint with either the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing
(DFEH) or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC). The time limits
for filing such complaints are as follows:

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 4030 (was BP 4001 Approved by the Board of Trustees
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1. To file a valid complaint with DFEH, the employee must file his’her complaint
within one year of the alleged discriminatory act(s), unless an exception exists
pursuant to Government Code 12960. (Government Code 12960)

2. To file a valid complaint directly with EEOC, the employee must file his/her
complaint within 180 days of the alleged discriminatory act(s). To file a valid
complaint with EEOC after filing a complaint with DFEH, the employee must file
the complaint within 300 days of the alleged discriminatory act(s) or within 30
days after the termination of proceedings by DFEH, whichever is earlier. (42
USC 2000e-5)

Employees wishing to file complaints with the DFEH and EEOC should contact the
nondiscrimination coordinator for more information.
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Legal Reference:

CIVIL CODE

51.7 Freedom from violence or intimidation

GOVERNMENT CODE

11135 Unlawful discrimination

12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act

PENAL CODE

422.56 Definitions, hate crimes

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2

7287.6 Terms, conditions and privileges of employment

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state
financial assistance

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1681-1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964
2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended
2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments
12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

100.6 Compliance information

104.8 Notice

106.8 Designation of responsible employee and adoption of grievance procedures
106.9 Dissemination of policy

COURT DECISIONS

Carter y. California Department of Veterans Affairs (2003) 2003 Cal. LEXIS 5694
Shephard v. Loyola Marymount (2002) 102 CalApp. 4" 837

Management Resources:

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION

Enforcement Guidance: Vicarious Employver Liability for Unlawful Harassment by Supervisors,
June 1999

Enforcement Guidance: Reasonable Accommodation and Undue Hardship under the Americans
with Disabilities Act, March, 1999

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE QF CIVIL RIGHTS

Notice of Non-Discrimination, January, 1999

WEB SITES

EEOC: hup://www.eeoc.gov

OCR: http://'www.ed.gov/offices/OCR

DFEH: hup://www.dfeh.ca.gov

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 4030 (was BP 4001 Approved by the Board of Trustees
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
ALL PERSONNEL

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION TO BOARD POLICY 4030:
NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT

Unlawful discrimination or harassment of an individual includes:

1. Slurs, epithets, threats or verbal abuse
2. Derogatory or degrading comments, descriptions, drawings, pictures or gestures
3. Unwelcome jokes, stories, teasing or taunting
4. Any other verbal, written, visual or physical conduct against the individual which:
a. Adversely affects his’/her employment opportunities, or
b. Has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with his/her work
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work
environment

Any employee or job applicant who feels that he/she has been or is being unlawfully
discriminated against or harassed should immediately contact his/her supervisor, the
nondiscrimination coordinator or the Superintendent in order to obtain procedures for
reporting a complaint. Such complaints shall be filed in accordance with AR 4031 -
Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment. An employee may bypass
his/her supervisor when the supervisor is the alleged offender. In the event the compliant
is against the Superintendent, the complainant shall file the complaint with the Director
of Personnel who must immediately notify the Board President, who will initiate the
investigation of the complaint.

Any supervisor who receives a discrimination/harassment complaint shall immediately
notify the nondiscrimination coordinator or the Superintendent, who shall ensure that the
complaint is appropriately investigated in accordance with district policy and regulations.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that annual training is provided to all
employees regarding the issues of discrimination.
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
ALL PERSONNEL

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 4031:

COMPLAINTS CONCERNING DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT

The following procedures shall be used when a district employee or job applicant has a
complaint alleging that a specific action, policy, procedure or practice discriminates
against him/her on any basis specified in the district's nondiscrimination policies.

1.

Level 1

The complaint should be initiated promptly after a complainant knew, or should
have known, of the alleged discrimination.

All parties involved in allegations of discrimination shall be notified when a
complaint is filed, when a complaint meeting or hearing is scheduled, and when a
decision or ruling is made. The parties also shall be notified of their right to
appeal the decision to the next level.

When a complaint is brought against the individual responsible for the complaint
process at any level, the complainant may address the complaint directly to the
next appropriate level.

Meetings related to a complaint shall be held at times the district determines
appropriate to the circumstances.

For the protection of all the parties involved, complaint proceedings shall be kept
confidential insofar as appropriate.

All documents, communications and records dealing with the investigation of the
complaint shall be placed in a confidential district personnel complaint file and
not in the employee's individual personnel file.

Time limits specified in these procedures may be revised only by written
agreement of all parties involved. If the district fails to respond within a specified
or adjusted time limit, a complainant may proceed to the next level. If a
complainant fails to take the complaint to the next step within the prescribed time,
the complaint shall be considered settled at the preceding step.

The complainant shall first meet informally with his/her supervisor or the administrator
of the school where the alleged discriminatory act occurred. A complaint regarding
discrimination away from the school site should be discussed informally with the
complainant's supervisor. If the complainant's concerns are not clear or cannot be
resolved through informal discussion, the supervisor or other administrator shall prepare,
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within 10 working days, a written summary of his/her meeting(s) with the complainant.
This report shall be made available to the nondiscrimination coordinator (coordinator)
designated by the Governing Board in BP 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment.

Level IT

If a complaint cannot be resolved to the satisfaction of the complainant at Level I, he/she
may submit a formal written complaint to the coordinator within 10 working days of
his/her attempt to resolve the complaint informally. The written complaint shall include
the following:

1. The complainant's name, address and telephone number

2. The name and work location of the district staff member who committed the
alleged violation

3. A description of the alleged discriminatory act(s) or omission(s)
4. The discriminatory basis alleged
5. A specific description of the time, place, nature, participants in and witnesses to

the alleged violation

6. Other pertinent information which may assist in investigating and resolving the
complaint
7. The complainant's signature or that of his/her representative

The coordinator shall assign a staff member to assist the complainant with this writing if
such help is needed. The coordinator shall respond to the complaint in writing within 10

working days.

The coordinator shall conduct any investigation necessary to respond to the complaint,
including discussion with the complainant, person(s) involved, appropriate staff members
and students, and review of the Level I report and all other relevant documents. If a
response from third parties is necessary, the coordinator may designate up to 10
additional working days for investigation of the complaint.

Level 111

If the complaint cannot be resolved at Level 11, either party may present the complaint to
the Superintendent or designee within 10 working days. The Superintendent or designee
shall review the Level II investigation file, including the written complaint and all
responses from district staff. The Superintendent or designee shall respond to the
complaint in writing within 10 working days.

Administrative Regulation 4031 (was Board Policy 4002 Approved by the Board of Trustees Jan.
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If the Superintendent or designee finds it necessary to conduct further investigation,
he/she may designate up to 10 additional working days for such investigation and shall
respond to the complaint in writing within 10 working days of completing the
investigation.

Level IV

If the matter is not resolved at Level III, either party may file a written appeal to the
Board within 10 working days after receiving the Level III response. The Superintendent
or designee shall provide the Board with all information presented at previous levels.

The Board shall grant the hearing request for the next regular Board meeting for which
the matter can be placed on the agenda. Any complaint against a district employee shall
be addressed in closed session in accordance with law. The Board shall render its
decision within 10 working days.

The Board may appoint a hearing panel to review the complaint and previous decisions
and make recommendations to the Board. The panel shall hear the appeal and render its
decision within 10 working days.

Other Remedies

Complainants may appeal the Board's action to the California Department of Education.
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that complainants are informed that
injunctions, restraining orders and other civil law remedies may also be available to them.
This information shall be published with the district's nondiscrimination complaint
procedures and included in any related notices. (Education Code 262.3)

Administrative Regulation 4031 (was Board Policy 4002 Approved by the Board of Trustees Jan.
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Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination
GOVERNMENT CODE
12920-12921 Nondiscrimination
12940-12948 Discrimination prohibited; unlawful practices, generally
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29
621-634 Age Discrimination in Employment Act
794 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
2001d-2001d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964
2001e-2001e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended
2001h-2-2001h-6 Title I1X, 1972 Education Act Amendments
12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act

Management Resources:
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION
Enforcement Guidance: Reasonable Accommodation and Undue Hardship under the Americans
with Disabilities Act, March, 1999
QFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS AND NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ATTORNEYS GENERAL
Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime, January, 1999
WEB SITES
EEOC: hup://www.eecc.gov
OCR: http://'www.ed.gov/offices/OCR

Administrative Regulation 4031 (was Board Policy 4002 Approved by the Board of Trustees Jan.
10, 1996): Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006



Administrative Regulation 4032

DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
ALL PERSONNEL

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 4032: REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION

Definitions

Disability, with respect to an individual, is defined as any of the following: (Government
Code 12926; 29 CFR 1630.2)

1. A physical or mental impairment that limits one or more of the major life
activities

2. A record of such an impairment

3. Being regarded as having such an impairment

Limits shall be determined without regard to mitigating measures such as medications,
assistive devices, prosthetics or reasonable accommodations, unless the mitigating
measure itself limits a major life activity. (Government Code 12926)

Essential functions are the fundamental job duties of the position the individual with a
disability holds or desires. The term does not include the marginal functions of the
position. (29 CFR 1630.2)

Reasonable accommodations that an employer may need to provide in connection with
modifications to the work environment or adjustments in how and when a job is
performed that enable an individual with a disability to enjoy equal employment
opportunities include, but are not limited to: (29 CFR 1630.2)

1. Making existing facilities accessible and usable
2. Restructuring the job duties

3. Offering part-time or modified work schedules
4. Acquiring or modifying equipment or devices
5. Changing tests, training materials or policies

6. Providing qualified readers or interpreters

7. Reassigning the employee to a vacant position

Qualified individual with a disability means an individual with a disability who satisfies
the requisite skill, experience, education and other job-related requirements of the
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employment position and who, with or without reasonable accommodation, can perform
the essential functions of such position. (29 CFR 1630.2)

Undue hardship is a determination based on an individualized assessment of current
circumstances that shows that a specific reasonable accommodation would cause
significant difficulty or expense. A determination of undue hardship should be based on
several factors, including: (29 CFR 1630.2)

1. The nature and net cost of the accommodation needed, taking into consideration
the availability of tax credits and deductions and/or outside funding

2. The overall financial resources of the facility making the reasonable
accommodation, the number of persons employed at this facility, the effect on
expenses and resources of the facility, or the impact on the operations of the

facility

3. The overall financial resources, size, number of employees, and the number, type
and location of facilities of the district

4. The type of operation of the district, including the structure and functions of the
workforce, the geographic separateness, and the administrative or fiscal
relationship of the facility involved in making the accommodation

5. The impact of the accommodation on the operation of the facility, including the
impact on the ability of other employees to perform their duties and the impact on
the facility's ability to conduct business.

Requests for Reasonable Accommodation

The district designates the position specified in BP 4030 - Nondiscrimination in
Employment as the coordinator of its efforts to comply with the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) and to investigate any and all related complaints.

When requesting reasonable accommodation, the employee or employee's representative
shall inform the employee's supervisor that he/she needs a change at work for a reason
related to a medical condition.

When requesting reasonable accommodation during the hiring process, a job applicant
shall inform the coordinator that he/she will need a reasonable accommodation for the

process.

Employees' requests for reasonable accommodation may first be considered informally
by the site administrator. The site administrator shall consult with the coordinator before
any decision as to accommodation is made.

When the disability and/or the need for accommodation is not obvious, the coordinator
may ask the employee to supply reasonable documentation about his/her disability. In
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requesting this documentation, the coordinator shall specify the types of information that
are being sought about the employee's condition, the employee's functional limitations
and the need for reasonable accommodation. The employee may be asked to sign a
limited release allowing the district to submit a list of specific questions to the health care
or vocational professional.

If the documentation submitted by the employee does not specify the existence of a
qualifying disability and explain the need for reasonable accommodation, the district may
require the employee to submit to an examination by a health care professional selected
and paid for by the district.

Upon receiving a request to reasonably accommodate a qualified employee with a
disability, the coordinator shall:

1. Determine the essential functions of the job

2. Engage in an informal, interactive process with the employee to review the
request for accommodation, identify the precise limitations resulting from the
disability, identify potential means for providing accommodation, and assess their
effectiveness

3. Develop a plan for reasonable accommodation which is effective and allows the
employee to perform the essential functions of the job or to gain equal access to a
benefit or privilege of employment and does not impose undue hardship on the
district

To qualify for a job, an individual shall not pose a significant risk of substantial harm to
himself/herself or others in the workplace, which cannot be eliminated or reduced by
reasonable accommodation. (29 CFR 1630.2)

The determination of whether an individual poses a significant risk of substantial harm to
himself/herself or others shall be made on a case-by-case basis and shall be based on
objective, factual evidence, taking into consideration the duration of the risks, the nature
and severity of the potential harm, the likelihood that the potential harm will occur and
the imminence of potential harm. (29 CFR 1630.2)

The coordinator may confer with the site administrator, the district medical advisor
and/or other district staff before making a final decision as to the accommodation.

Reasonable Accommodation Committee

The coordinator may appoint a Reasonable Accommodation Committee to review or
assist in the development of appropriate plans to reasonably accommodate an employee
or qualified job applicant who has requested an adjustment in work duties or environment
because of known physical or mental disabilities. The membership of this committee
may change on a case-by-case basis. The committee may include:
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1. A district administrator

2. A site administrator

3. A medical advisor or rehabilitation specialist
4. A certificated employee

5. A classified employee

Committee members shall be selected on the basis of their knowledge of the relevant
issues, including:

1. The specific functions and duties required in the position
2. The physical work environment
3. Available accommodations

At the coordinator's discretion, the employee or applicant requesting accommodation may
participate in or be excluded from committee meetings. If the employee or applicant is
excluded from committee meetings, the coordinator shall communicate with him/her so
that he/she has the opportunity to interact and contribute to planning the reasonable
accommodation.

The coordinator shall take steps to ensure the confidentiality of information related to
medical conditions.

Appeal Process

If the employee or applicant is not satisfied with the decision of the coordinator, he/she
may appeal in writing to the Superintendent or designee. This appeal shall be made
within 10 working days of receiving the decision and shall include:

1. A clear, concise statement of the reasons for the appeal

2. A statement of the specific remedy sought

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with the coordinator and review the appeal,
together with any available supporting documents. The Superintendent or designee shall

give the employee or applicant his/her decision within 15 working days of receiving the
appeal.
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Any further appeal for reasonable accommodation shall be considered a complaint
concerning discrimination in employment and may be taken to the Governing Board in
accordance with the district's procedure for such complaints.

Legal Reference:
CIVIL CODE
51 Unruh Civil Rights Act
GOVERNMENT CODE
12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29
701-794e Vocational Rehabilitation Act
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act
CODE QF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act, especially:
35.107 Designation of employee
36.101-36.608 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability by public facilities
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29
1630.2 Direct threat
COURT DECISIONS
Colmenares v. Braemar Country Club, Inc., 2003 Cal. LEXIS 1131
Chevron USA v. Echazabal, (2002) 536 U.S .73, 122 S5.Ct. 2045
US Airways, Inc. v. Barnett, (2002) 535 U.S., 122 S.Ct. 1516

Management Resources:
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION
Enforcement Guidance: Reasonable Accommodation and Undue Hardship under the Americans
with Disabilities Act, October 2002
WEB SITES
EEOC: http://www.eeoc.gov
Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http://www.dfeh.ca.gov
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
ALL PERSONNEL

BOARD POLICY 4040: EMPLOYEE USE OF TECHNOLOGY

The Governing Board recognizes that technological resources can enhance employee
performance by improving access to and exchange of information, offering effective tools to
assist in providing a quality instructional program, and facilitating district and school
operations. The Board expects all employees to learn to use the available technological
resources that will assist them in the performance of their job responsibilities. As needed,
employees shall receive training in the appropriate use of these resources.

Employees shall be responsible for the appropriate use of technology and shall use the district's
technological resources only for purposes related to their employment. Such use is a privilege,
which may be revoked at any time.

Employees should be aware that computer files and communications over electronic networks,
including e-mail and voice mail, are not private. These technologies shall not be used to transmit
confidential information about students, employees or district operations without authority.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all district computers with Internet access have
a technology protection measure that prevents access to visual depictions that are obscene or
pornographic, and that the operation of such measures is enforced. The Superintendent or
designee may disable the technology protection measure during use by an adult to enable access
for bona fide research or other lawful purpose. (20 USC 6777; 47 USC 254)

To ensure proper use of the system, the Superintendent or designee may monitor the district's
technological resources, including e-mail and voice mail systems, at any time without advance
notice or consent. If passwords are used, they must be known to the Superintendent or designee,
so that he/she may have system access.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish administrative regulations which outline
employee obligations and responsibilities related to the use of district technology. He/she also
may establish guidelines and limits on the use of technological resources. Inappropriate use
shall result in a cancellation of the employee's user privileges, disciplinary action and/or legal
action in accordance with law, Board policy and administrative regulations.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide copies of related policies, regulations and
guidelines to all employees who use the district's technological resources. Employees shall be
asked to acknowledge in writing that they have read and understood these policies, regulations
and guidelines.
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Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
51870-51874 Education technology
GOVERNMENT CODE
3543.1 Rights of employee organizations
PENAL CODE
502 Computer crimes, remedies
632 Eavesdropping on or recording confidential communications
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47
254 Universal service discounts (E-rate)
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 47
354.520 Internet safety policy and technology protection measures, E-rate discounts
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
6751-6777 Education Through Technology Act, No Child Left Behind Act, Title 11, Part D
6777 Internet Safety

Management Resources:
CDE PUBLICATIONS
K-12 Network Technology Planning Guide: Building the Future, 1994
CDE PROGRAM ADVISORIES
1223.94 Acceptable Use of Electronic Information Resources
WEB SITES
CDE: http://www.cde.ca.gov
CSBA: http:/fwww.csba.org
Federal Communications Commission: http://www.fcc.gov
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov
American Library Association: http://www.ala.org
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
ALL PERSONNEL

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION TO BOARD POLICY 4040:
EMPILOYEE USE OF TECHNOLOGY

On-Line/Internet Services: User Obligations and Responsibilities

Employees are authorized to use district equipment to access the Internet or on-line services in
accordance with Governing Board policy and the user obligations and responsibilities specified
below.

1. The employee in whose name an on-line services account is issued is responsible for its
proper use at all times. Employees shall keep account information, home addresses and
telephone numbers private. They shall use the system only under their own account

number.
2. Employees shall use the system responsibly and primarily for work-related purposes.
3. Employees shall not access, post, submit, publish or display harmful or inappropriate

matter that is threatening, obscene, disruptive or sexually explicit, or that could be
construed as harassment or disparagement of others based on their race/ethnicity,
national origin, gender, sexual orientation, age, disability, religion or political beliefs.

4. Employees shall not use the system to promote unethical practices or any activity
prohibited by law, Board policy or administrative regulations.

5. Copyrighted material shall not be placed on the system without the author's permission.
Employees may download copyrighted material only in accordance with applicable
copyright laws.

6. Employees shall not intentionally upload, download or create computer viruses and/or

maliciously attempt to harm or destroy district equipment or materials or the data of any
other user, including so-called "hacking."

7. Employees shall not read other users' electronic mail or files. They shall not attempt to
interfere with other users' ability to send or receive electronic mail, nor shall they
attempt to read, delete, copy, modify or forge other users' mail.

8. Users shall report any security problem or misuse of the services to the Superintendent
or designee.
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] L]
District Telecommunications Network EXhlblt 1
Employee Account Agreement

Name

Position

School or Department

I have read the district acceptable use policy. I agree to follow the rules contained in this policy.
I understand that if I violate the rules, I may face disciplinary action, up to and including
dismissal.

I understand that my use of district technology is subject to the district’s right to monitor its
technology, including e-mail, Internet files and Internet access, at any time without advance
notice of consent when there is a business need to do so.

I understand and agree that the district makes no warranties of any kind, either express or
implied, that the functions or the services provided by or through the district
telecommunications network will be error-free or without defect; that the district will not be
responsible for any claim, damages, or injury of any nature whatsoever, which users may suffer
as a result, whether directly or indirectly, of use of the district telecommunications network,
including, but not limited to, personal injury, emotional distress or suffering, or the loss of data
or interruptions of service; that the district is not responsible for the accuracy or quality of the
information obtained through or stored on the system; and that the district will not be
responsible for financial obligations arising through the unauthorized use of the district
telecommunications network, including but not limited to the purchase of products of services.

I hereby release the district, its personnel and any institutions with which it is affiliated, from
any and all claims or damages of any nature whatsoever arising from my use of, or inability to
use, the district telecommunications network, and will indemnify the district for any costs as a
result of my unauthorized use of the system to purchase products or services.

Signature Date

Supervisor Date

Printed Name

School/Dept.

Approved by Date

District Telecommunications Network Administrator UseOnly

Assigned User Name: :
Assigned Temporary |
Completed By:
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Board Policy 4100

DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

BOARD POLICY 4100: CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

The Governing Board recognizes that teachers and other certificated personnel work
closely with students in carrying out the district's educational goals. The Superintendent
or designee shall ensure that the duties, responsibilities, and district's expectations for
certificated positions are clearly defined and made known to each member of the

certificated staff.

Each certificated staff member shall be held accountable for duties assigned to him/her
and shall undergo regular performance evaluations in accordance with law and negotiated

agreements.

The Board strongly encourages certificated staff to continually improve their skills and
pursue excellence within their profession.

Policies, rules and regulations related to certificated personnel shall be available to all
concerned and shall be administered in a fair and equitable manner.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
90 Definition, certificated and certified
44006 Certificated person
44490-44497 Mentor teacher program
GOVERNMENT CODE
3543.2 Scope of representation
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

BOARD POLICY 4111: RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION

The Governing Board desires to employ the most highly qualified and appropriate person
available for each open position in order to improve student achievement and efficiency

in district operations.

The Superintendent or designee shall recruit candidates for open positions based on an
assessment of the district’s needs for specific skills, knowledge and abilities. He/she
shall develop job descriptions that accurately describe all essential and marginal
functions and duties of each position, and shall disseminate job announcements to ensure
a wide range of candidates.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop selection procedures that identify the best
possible candidate for each position based on screening processes, interviews,
observations and recommendations from previous employers. He/she may establish an
interview committee, as appropriate, to rank candidates and recommend finalists. All
discussions and recommendations shall be confidential in accordance with law.

During job interviews, applicants may be asked to describe or demonstrate how they will
be able to perform the duties of the job. No inquiry shall be made with regard to any
category of discrimination prohibited by state or federal law.

For each position, the Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board one
candidate who meets all qualifications established by law and the Board for the position.
No person shall be employed by the Board without the recommendation or endorsement
of the Superintendent or designee.

Board Policy 4111 (was BP 4005 Approved by the Board of Trustees Jan. 10, 1996): Approved
by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006
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Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex
44066 Limitations on certification requirement
44259 Teaching credential; exception; designated subjects; minimum requirements
44735 Incentive grants for recruiting teachers for low-performing schools
44750-44754.5 Regional teacher recruitment centers
44830-44831 Employment of certificated persons
44858 Age or marital status in certificated positions
44859 Prohibition against certain rules and regulations re residency
45103-45138 Employment (classified employees)
49406 Examination for tuberculosis
52051 Academic Performance Index
GOVERNMENT CODE
12900-12996 Fair Employment and Housing Act, including:
12940-12956 Discrimination prohibited; unlawful practices
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 8
1324a Unlawful employment of aliens
1324b Unfair immigration related practices
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964
2000e-2000e-17 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended
2000h-2-2000h-6 Title 1X, 1972 Education Act Amendments
12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.101-35.190 Americans with Disabilities Act

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Maximizing School Board Leadership: Human Resources, 1996
WEB SITES
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission: http://www.eeoc.gov
Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http://www.dfeh.ca.gov
CalTeach: http://'www.calteach.org
Education Job Opportunities Information Network: http://www.edjoin.org

Board Policy 4111 (was BP 4005 Approved by the Board of Trustees Jan. 10, 1996): Approved
by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

BOARD POLICY 4111.2: LEGAL STATUS REQUIREMENT

The district shall hire only citizens and aliens who are lawfully authorized to work in the
United States. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that district employment
practices do not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of citizenship status or national
origin, including but not limited to, discrimination against any refugees, grantees of
asylum, or persons qualified for permanent or temporary residency.

All new employees shall show appropriate documents, which certify that they are legally
eligible to work in the United States, as required by law and in accordance with
administrative regulation.

Legal Reference:
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 8
1324(a)(b) Immigration and Nationality Act, as amended by Immigration Reform and Conitrol Act
of 1986 and Immigration Act of 1990
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 8
274a.1-a.14 Control of Employment of Aliens

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
Immigration and Naturalization Service: http://www.ins.usdoj.gov

Board Policy/Admin. Reg. 4111.2: Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION TO BOARD POLICY 4111.2:
LEGAL STATUS REQUIREMENT

Within three business days of hire, the Superintendent or designee shall physically
examine the documentation presented by the employee establishing his/her identity and
employment eligibility as set forth in INS Form I-9. The Superintendent or designee
shall (1) ensure that the documents presented appear to be genuine and relate to the
individual and (2) complete the "Employer Review and Verification" section of the Form
I-9. (8 CFR 274a.2)

Persons employed for three days or less must provide such documentation on their first
day. (8 CFR 274a.2)

If unable to provide satisfactory documentation because the document was lost, stolen, or
damaged, the employee shall furnish a receipt indicating that a replacement document has
been requested. This receipt must be presented within three days of the hire, and the
replacement document must be provided within 90 days of the hire. (8 CFR 274a.2)

If an individual's employment authorization expires, the Superintendent or designee must
re-verify the I-9 form, by noting the document's identification number and expiration date
on the form, no later than the date the work authorization expires. The employee shall
present a document that either shows continuing employment eligibility or a new grant of
work authorization. (8 CFR 274a.2)

After examining the documents presented, the Superintendent or designee shall copy
them. Such copies shall be retained with the individual's I-9 form. The documents shall
be kept confidential and used only as needed to help justify the district's past decision to
accept the documents as valid.

The district shall retain the I-9 forms for three years after the date of the hire or for one
year after the date the individual's employment is terminated, whichever is later. (8 CFR
274a.2)

Board Policy/Admin. Reg. 4111.2: Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 4112:

APPOINTMENT AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

Upon recommendation from the Superintendent or designee, the Governing Board shall
approve the appointment of all certificated personnel. The position and the salary
classification shall be reported to the Board at a regular meeting.

Individuals appointed to the certificated staff shall:

1.

10.

Possess the appropriate certification qualifications and register the certification
document in accordance with law and Board policy (Education Code 44250-
44279, 44330)

Demonstrate proficiency in basic skills as required by law and Board policy
(Education Code 44252.5, 44830)

When required by the federal No Child Left Behind Act for teachers of core
academic subjects, possess the qualifications of “highly qualified” teachers as
defined in law, Board policy and administrative regulations (20 USC 6319)

Submit to fingerprinting as required by law (Education Code 44830.1)

Not have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as defined in Penal Code
667.5 or 1192.7, unless the individual has received a certificate of rehabilitation
and pardon (Education Code 44830.1)

Not have been convicted of any sex offense as defined in Education Code 44010
(Education Code 44836)

Not have been required to register as a sex offender pursuant to Penal Code 290
because of a conviction for a crime where the victim was a minor under the age of
16 (Penal Code 290.95)

Not have been determined to be a sexual psychopath pursuant to Welfare and
Institutions Code 6300-6332 (Education Code 44837)

Not have been convicted of any controlled substance offense as defined in
Education Code 44011 (Education Code 44836)

Submit to a physical examination, tuberculosis testing and/or provide a medical
certificate as required by law and Board policy (Education Code 44839, 49406)

Administrative Regulation 4112 (was BP 4006 Approved by the Board of Trustees Jan. 10, 1996):
Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006
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11. Submit to drug and alcohol testing as required by Board policy

12. Furnish a statement of military service and, if any was rendered, a copy of the
discharge or release from service or, if no such document is available, other
suitable evidence of the termination of service (Education Code 44838)

13. File the oath or affirmation of allegiance required by Government Code 3100-
3109

14. Fulfill any other requirements as specified by law, collective bargaining
agreement, Board policy or administrative regulation

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

35161 Powers and duties

44008 Effect of termination of probation

44009 Conviction of specified crimes; definitions

44010 Sex offense

44011 Controlled substance offense

44066 Limitation on certification requirements

44250-44279 Credential types

44330 Effect of registration of certification document

44830.1 Felons, certificated positions; criminal record summary; fingerprints
44836 Employment of person convicted of sex offenses or controlled substance offenses
44837 Employment of sexual sociopath

44838 Statement of military service

44839 Medical certificate

44839.5 Medical certificate for retirant

49406 Examination for tuberculosis

GOVERNMENT CODE

3100-3109 Oaths or affirmations of allegiance for disaster service workers and public employees
12940-12950 Unlawful employment practices

PENAL CODE

290 Registration of sex offenders

290.95 Disclosure by persons required to register as sex offenders
667.5 Prior prison terms, enhancement of prison terms

1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

6300-6332 Sexual psychopaths

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

6100-6125 Teacher qualifications, No Child Left Behind Act
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6319 Highly qualified teachers

7801 Definitions, highly qualified teacher

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

200.55-200.57 Highly qualified teachers

Administrative Regulation 4112 (was BP 4006 Approved by the Board of Trustees Jan. 10, 1996):
Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 4112.1: CONTRACTS

When initially employed, certificated employees shall receive a written statement of their
employment status and salary. In the case of temporary employees, this statement shall
clearly indicate the temporary nature of the employment and the length of time for which
the person is being employed. (Education Code 44916)

Employee Notification

An employee on leave of absence shall notify the district of his/her intent to remain in
service the following year in accordance with law, Board policy and administrative
regulation.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
44832 Teachers; notice of intent to return
44842 Failure to provide notice or to report to work
44843 Notice of employment (to county superintendent)
44916 Time of classification; statement of employment status
44929.20 Continuing contract-districts w/less than 250 ADA
44955 Reduction in number of employees

Administrative Regulation 4112.1: Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

BOARD POLICY 4112.2: CERTIFICATION

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that persons employed in positions requiring
certification qualifications possess the appropriate credential or permit from the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) authorizing their employment in such
positions.

When a fully credentialed teacher is not available, the district may employ a person with
a short-term staff permit or provisional internship permit under the conditions and
limitations provided in state and federal law.

As necessary, all teachers of core academic subjects shall meet the requirements of the
No Child Left Behind Act. (20 USC 6319, 7801; 5 CCR 6100-6125)

National Board for Professional Teaching Standards Certification

The Board encourages district teachers to voluntarily seek additional certification from
the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards, which demonstrates advanced
knowledge and teaching skills.

The Superintendent or designee shall inform all teachers about the program and how to
acquire the necessary application and information materials. The Superintendent or
designee may provide release time, fee support, a stipend upon completion, or other
support to teachers participating in the program contingent upon funding.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
8360-8370 Qualifications of child care personnel
32340-32341 Unlawful issuance of a credential
35186  Complaints regarding teacher vacancy or misassignment
42647  Drawing of warrants
44066  Limitations on certification requirements
44200-44405 Teacher credentialing, especially:
44225.6 CTC annual report on availability of teachers
44251  Period of credentials
44252  Standards and procedures for issuance; proficiency testing of basic skills
44252.5 State basic skills assessment required for certificated personnel
44258.9 Monitoring of teacher assignments by county superintendent
44259  Minimum requirements for teaching credential
44259.5 Standards for teachers of all students, including English language learners
44270.3-44270.4 Out-of-state credentials, administrative services
44274-44274.5 Out-of-state credentials

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 4112.2: Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28,
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44275.3 Employment of teachers with out-of-state credentials

44277  Requirements for maintaining valid credentials

44278  Credential appeal

44325-44329 District interns

44330-44355 Certificates and credentials

44395-44399 National Board for Professional Teaching Standards

44464  Period of validity of internship credential

44468  Early completion of internship program

44500-44508 Peer Assistance and Review Program for Teachers

44662 Performance evaluation; Stull Act review

44735  Teaching as a priority block grant

44830-44929 Employment of certificated persons; requirement of proficiency in basic skills

56060-56063 Substitute teachers in special education

90530  Recruitment Centers

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

6100-6125 Teacher qualifications, No Child Left Behind Act

80001-80674.6 Commission on Teacher Credentialing

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6311 Parental notifications

6312 District Title I plan

6319 Highly qualified teachers

7801 Definitions, highly qualified teacher

CODE QF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

200.55-200.57 Highly gqualified teachers

200.61  Parent notification regarding teacher qualifications

COURT DECISIONS

Association of Mexican-American Educators et. al. v. State of California and the Commission on
Teacher Credentialing, (1993) 836 F.Supp. 1534

Management Resources:

CSBA POLICY ADVISORIES

Teacher Credentialing Commission Eliminates Emergency Permits, August 2003

COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING CODED CORRESPONDENCE

03-0021 Alignment of Emergency Permits and Credential Waivers with No Child Left Behind

COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS

Standards of Quality and Effectiveness for Professional Teacher Induction Programs, March 2002

Standards of Quality and Effectiveness for Professional Teacher Preparation Programs, September
2001

California Standards for the Teaching Profession, July 1997

US. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants, December 19, 2002

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://'www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://'www.ctc.ca.gov

U.S. Department of Education: http://'www.ed.gov

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 4112.2: Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28,
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION TO BOARD POLICY 4112.2;
CERTIFICATION

Registration

Each person employed by the district for a position requiring certification qualifications
shall, within 60 days after beginning employment, register with the county office of
education a valid credential authorizing the person to work in that position. Certificated
employees also shall register renewed credentials within 60 days after the renewal.
(Education Code 44330, 44857)

Basic Skills Proficiency Test

Prior to being hired by the Governing Board, all certificated persons, whether hired on a
permanent, temporary, or substitute basis, shall demonstrate basic skills proficiency in
reading, writing, and mathematics, unless specifically exempted from this requirement by
Education Code 44830. (Education Code 44830)

Certificated persons who have not held a position requiring certification within 39
months of employment and who have not taken the state basic skills proficiency test may
be hired as temporary employees, provided they pass a basic skills proficiency test
developed and administered by the district. Such employees shall subsequently take the
state test within one year of employment. (Education Code 44830)

Out-of-State/Country Credentials

The district may employ an out-of-state applicant who has met the requirements of
Education Code 44274.2, 44275.3, or 44275.4 and obtained a preliminary or professional
clear credential from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC).

To be eligible for a professional clear credential, teachers prepared out of state or out of
the country must meet legal requirements for basic skill proficiency, subject matter
competence, course completion, and either a fifth-year postsecondary program or an
induction program for beginning teachers. (Education Code 44274, 44275.3, 44275.4)

Emergency Substitute Teaching Permits

The district may employ, at any grade level, a person with an emergency substitute
permit issued by the CTC with the following restrictions:

1. A person with a 30-day emergency substitute permit shall not serve as a substitute
for more than 30 days for any one teacher during the school year. (5 CCR 80025)

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 4112.2: Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28,
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2. A person with an emergency career substitute teaching permit shall not serve as a
substitute for more than 60 days for any one teacher during the school year. (5 CCR
80025.1)

3. A person with an emergency substitute permit for prospective teachers shall not
serve as a substitute for more than 30 days for any one teacher during the school year
and not more than 90 days total during the school year. (5 CCR 80025.2)

4. A person authorized for day-to-day substitute teaching shall not serve as a special
education substitute for more than 20 days for any one teacher during the school
year. (5 CCR 80025.4)

5. A person with an emergency substitute permit for vocational education shall not
serve as a substitute for more than 30 days for any one teacher during the school
year. (5 CCR 80025.5)

Before employing any person pursuant to 5 CCR 80025 or 80025.5, the Superintendent
or designee shall prepare and keep on file a signed statement of need. The statement of
need shall describe the situation or circumstances that necessitate the use of a 30-day
substitute permit holder and state either that a credentialed person is not available or that
the available credentialed person does not meet the district’s specified employment
criteria. (5 CCR 80025, 80025.5)

Short-Term and Provisional Internship Permits

Whenever there is a need to fill a classroom immediately based on an unforeseen need,
the district may request that the CTC issue a short-term staff permit to an applicant who
meets the qualifications specified in 5 CCR 80021. In such cases, the district shall: (5
CCR 80021)

1. Verify that it has conducted a local recruitment for the short-term staff permit being
requested

2. Verify that it has provided the permit holder with orientation to the curriculum and
to instruction and classroom management techniques, and has assigned a mentor
teacher for the term of the permit

3. Submit written justification for the permit signed by the Superintendent or designee

The district may request that the CTC issue a provisional internship permit to an
applicant who meets the qualifications specified in 5 CCR 80021.1 whenever a suitable
credentialed teacher cannot be found after a diligent search. The district shall verify each
of the following: (5 CCR 80021.1)

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 4112.2: Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28,
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1. That a diligent search has been conducted for a suitable credentialed teacher or
suitable qualified intern as evidenced by documentation of the search

The search shall include, but not be limited to, distributing job announcements,
contacting college and university placement centers, and advertising in print or electronic
media.

2. That orientation, guidance, and assistance will be provided to the permit holder as
specified in 5 CCR 80026.5

The orientation shall include, but not be limited to, an overview of the curriculum the
teacher is expected to teach and effective instruction and classroom management
techniques at the permit holder’s assigned level. The Superintendent or designee shall
assign an experienced educator to guide and assist each permit holder. (5 CCR 80026.5)

3. That the district will assist the permit holder in developing a personalized plan
through a district-defined assessment that would lead to subject-matter competence
related to the permit

4. That the district will assist the permit holder to seek and enroll in subject-matter
training, such as workshops or seminars and site-based courses, along with training
in test-taking strategies, and will assist the permit holder in meeting the credential
subject-matter competence requirement related to the permit

5. That a notice of intent to employ the applicant in the identified position has been
made public

The district shall submit a copy of the agenda item presented at a public Board meeting
which shall state the name of the applicant, the assignment in which the applicant will be
employed including the name of the school, subject(s), and grade(s) that he/she will be
teaching, and that the applicant will be employed on the basis of a provisional internship
permit. The district also shall submit a signed statement from the Superintendent or
designee that the agenda item was acted upon favorably.

6. That the candidate has been apprised of steps to earn a credential and enroll in an
internship program

Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 4112.2: Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28,
2006
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

BOARD POLICY 4112.21: INTERNS

The Governing Board supports the use of interns to fulfill the district’s need for
additional instructional resources and to enable future teachers to fulfill state
credentialing requirements and link teaching theory with practice.

The Superintendent or designee may enter into an agreement with an accredited college
or university to jointly provide supervised teaching experiences within the district as part
of a teacher preparation program. He/she shall collaborate with the college or university
in the selection, placement, support and performance assessment of interns.

Interns shall not be assigned to teach any classes outside the subject area, grade levels or
classes authorized by their credential.

In order to be hired to teach core academic subjects, as defined in law, in a program
supported by federal Title I funds, or to teach core academic subjects in any classroom
after the end of the 2005-06 school year, an intern shall meet the definition of a “highly
qualified” teacher adopted by the State Board of Education. (20 USC 6319, 7801; 5 CCR

6100-6112)

Terms of employment for interns shall be consistent with law and/or the district’s
collective bargaining agreement.

Interns shall be provided with ongoing feedback regarding their performance in order to
enhance their skills and shall be formally evaluated at least once every year.

The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate services offered to interns with services

offered to beginning teachers in the district in order to provide continuity of preparation,
support and assessment.

Board Policy/Admin. Reg. 4112.21: Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006
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Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
300-340 English language education for immigrant children
44259 Minimum requirements for teaching credential
44279.1-44279.7 Beginning Teacher Support and Assessment System
44305-44308 Pre-Internship Teaching Program
44314 Diversified or liberal arts program
44321 CTC approval of internship programs
44325-44329 District interns
44450-44468 Teacher Education Internship Act of 1967 (university interns)
44830.3 Employing district interns
44885.5 District interns classified as probationary employees
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
6100-6125 No Child Left Behind teacher requirements
13000-13017 New Careers Program
80055 Internship credential
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
6319 Highly qualified teachers
7801 Definitions, highly qualified teacher

Management Resources:
CTC PUBLICATIONS
CTC Credential Handbook, revised 1997
California’s Future: Highly Qualified Teachers for All Students, November 1997 (contains
California Standards for the Teaching Profession)
Standards of Program Quality and Effectiveness for District Intern Programs, revised 1996
CTC CODED CORRESPONDENCE
03-0028 Changes in district intern programs as a result of Senate Bill 187, December 22, 2003
03-0006 Announcement of the availability of Individualized Internship Certificate, March 3, 2003
US. DEPARTMENT QF EDUCATION GUIDANCE
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants Title Il, Part A Non-Regulatory Draft Guidance, revised
January 16, 2004
CSBA ADVISORIES
New Law Amends District Intern Program, September 2003
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://'www.csba.org
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http.//www.ctc.ca.gov

Board Policy/Admin. Reg. 4112.21: Approved by the Board of Trustees: March 28, 2006
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DEL MAR UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION TO BOARD POLICY 4112.21: INTERNS

University Internship Program

The Governing Board may employ persons with an appropriate internship credential from
the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) to provide the same service at the same
levels as the regular credential authorizes. (Education Code 44454)

The Superintendent or designee shall seek the assistance of the college or university in
coordinating the intern’s program. (Education Code 44465)

The Superintendent or designee may enter into agreements to employ competent and
qualified college and university staff members to supervise and guide interns as they
pursue their district responsibilities. (Education Code 44461)

A university intern may choose an early completion option leading to a five-year
preliminary credential by demonstrating competence through assessments and
observations in accordance with Education Code 44468. (Education Code 44468)

Prior to enrollment in any college or university program to renew the internship
credential, the Superintendent or designee shall counsel with the intern and jointly plan a
total program for the first and subsequent renewals. The program shall meet the
instructional or service needs of the district with the primary objective being to increase
the effectiveness of the intern in the district. (Education Code 44457, 44458)

District Internship Program

The Board may, in consultation with an accredited college or university offering an
approved program of teacher preparation, employ individuals with an appropriate
credential from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) to teach as district
interns in any classes in grades K-6, in bilingual education classes or in special education
programs for students with mild and moderate disabilities. (Education Code 44830.3)

Each district intern shall be assisted and guided by one of the following: (Education
Code 44326, 44830.3)

1. A certificated employee who possesses valid certification at the same level or of
the same type of credential as the district intern he/she serves, and who is selected
through a competitive process adopted by the Board after consultation with the
exclusive teacher representative unit

2. Personnel employed by the college or university to supervise student teachers
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The Superintendent or designee shall, in consultation with the college or university,
develop and implement a professional development plan for each district intern. This plan
shall include but not necessarily be limited to the components described in Education
Code 44830.3, including provisions for mandatory preservice training tailored to the
grade level or class to be taught, additional instruction during the first year of service
when required, and an annual evaluation of the district intern. (Education Code 44830.3)

As an alternative to the coursework requirements described in Education Code 44830.3, a
district intern may choose an early completion option leading to a five-year preliminary
credential by demonstrating competence through assessments and observations in
accordance with Education Code 44468. (Education Code 44468)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that appropriate records are maintained,
showing the credit earned by each district intern. (Education Code 44327)

When a district intern’s credential expires, the Superintendent or designee may
recommend to the CTC that the intern credential be extended for one year. (Education
Code 44325)

When a district intern has successfully completed service sufficient to meet program
standards and performance assessments, the Board may recommend to the CTC that the
intern be awarded a preliminary credential. The Board may recommend issuance of a
professional clear credential if the program includes an approved induction plan or CTC-
approved advanced coursework meeting the requirements of Education Code 44259(c)
for the professional clear credential. (Education Code 44328, 44468, 44830.3)

Individualized Internship Certificate

The Superintendent or designee, in cooperation with a postsecondary teacher preparation
program, may apply for an individualized internship certificate for an employee teaching
in any of grades K-12 or in special education classes who is not currently enrolled in a
university or district internship program, has met all the college or university admission
requirements for a teacher certifica